
Town of Belgrade 
Board of Selectpersons 

March 15, 2022 / 6:30 p.m. 
Belgrade Town Office 

990 Augusta Road 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person.  
The public may also view the meeting and participate online at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984  
 

A G E N D A 
 
Call to order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Open meeting 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
2. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of March 1, 2022, Selectboard minutes. 
3. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appointments. 
1. Jordan Zoretic – Appeals Board. 
2. Sara Languet – Budget Committee. 

B. Discussion and consideration of skid steer RFP.  
C. Discussion and consideration of board and committee attendance policy. 
D. Discussion and consideration of Lakes Committee bylaws.  
E. Discussion and consideration of Spirit of America nominees:  

1. Marylou and Alan Butterfield. 
2. Judy Hallowell.  
3. Becky Seel. 
4. Mary Vogel. 

4. WARRANT 
5. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


 

Town of Belgrade 
Board of Selectpersons 

March 1, 2022 / 6:30 p.m. 
Belgrade Town Office 

990 Augusta Road 
 

This meeting can be watched at 
https://youtu.be/Fw0LlElVhxw 

 

M I N U T E S 
 
Selectboard members present: Melanie Jewell, Barbara Allen, Dan Newman, Carol 
Johnson, Rick Damren. 

In-person attendees: Town Manager Anthony Wilson. 

Remote attendees: Jay Bradshaw, Dick Bourne, Town Clerk Mary Vogel, Nicholas 
Alexander, Fire Chief Dan MacKenzie, Library Trustee Leilani Carlson. 

Ms. Jewell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
Ms. Allen moved to open the public hearing. Ms. Johnson seconded. Motion approved 
4-0. Mr. Newman had not yet arrived. 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT. There was no public comment. 
2. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of Feb. 15, 2022, Selectboard minutes. Ms. Jewell moved approval as 
presented. Mr. Damren seconded. Motion approved 4-0. Mr. Newman had not 
yet arrived. 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Board reappointment: Leilani Carlson – Library Board of Trustees. Ms. Jewell 

moved approval. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 4-0. Mr. Newman had not 
yet arrived. 

B. WARRANT. Ms. Jewell moved approval of warrant no. 22 in the amount of 
$611,983.88. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

C. TOWN MANAGER REPORT. The Town Manager reported the investigation into 
the high electric bills at 8 Dalton continues. He and the leasing agent inspected 
the premises the day before and found nothing unusual.  
He reminded the Board of a public informational meeting on a proposed solar 
farm at 6:15 p.m. March 9 at the Center for All Seasons. He also said the 
Planning Board is making progress on its commercial solar regulations. Mr. 
Newman asked for drafts of that work as it progresses.  
The manager reported the auditor recommended depositing cleaning deposits for 
community center rentals, and sought authority to sign monthly warrants to return 
those. Ms. Jewell raised a concern about depositing checks that could result in 

https://youtu.be/Fw0LlElVhxw


 
overdrafts for low-income residents. The Board asked that the Board of Parks 
and Recreation make a recommendation on how to handle deposits to the 
Selectboard.  
 
Ms. Allen moved to exit open session at 6:51 p.m. Ms. Johnson seconded. 
Motion approved 5-0. Ms. Johnson moved to enter executive session at 6:52 
p.m. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 5-0.  
 
Ms. Johnson moved to exit executive session at 7:05 p.m. Ms. Allen seconded. 
Motion approved 5-0. Mr. Damren moved to re-enter open session at 7:05 p.m. 
Ms. Johnson seconded. Motion approved 5-0.  
 
No action was taken.  
 
Ms. Johnson moved to adjourn. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 5-0. The 
meeting adjourned at 7:07 p.m. 

 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 15, 2022 

Re: Appointments 

 

After advertising the vacancies on the Board of Appeals and the Budget 
Committee for at least two weeks, we received one application for each:  

• Board of Appeals – Jordan Zoretic  
• Budget Committee – Sara Languet 

The members of each body have endorsed the applications and recommend to 
you their appointment.  



















Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 15, 2022 

Re: Skid steer RFP 

 

Last week, the Transfer Station Committee approved a recommendation that the 
Selectboard approve the attached Request for Proposals for the purchase of a 
skid steer. The RFP would not be issued until after voters have approved the 
article on the Town Meeting warrant authorizing the purchase using 
undesignated funds (assuming voters approve it).  

Transfer Station Director Ken Scheno was recently informed by a dealer the price 
of skid steers has increased. If the price exceeds the $59,000 the warrant article 
would authorize from the undesignated fund, the balance could be paid from the 
Solid Waste Capital Reserve Account. The balance of that account would be 
$100,000 if voters approve the warrant article to transfer monies from the 
undesignated fund into our capital reserves.  



 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 
SKID STEER 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The Town of Belgrade, Maine (hereinafter, the “Town”) is seeking sealed proposals for the 
purchase of a skid steer. 
 
All proposals are to be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly marked on the outside “Town of 
Belgrade Skid Steer.” 

Completed proposals must be received at the Town Office, at the following address: 990 
Augusta Road, Belgrade, Maine 04917, by 4 p.m., on Friday, April 8, 2022. 

Any proposal received after the deadline stated above shall not be considered. The proposal must 
be signed by the proposer with its full name and address and enclosed in a sealed envelope. 

Bids will be publicly opened on Tuesday, April 12, 2022, in the conference room at the Town 
Office at 9 a.m. 
 
Questions regarding this Request for Proposals should be directed to Anthony Wilson, Town 
Manager, at the address above or by email at townmanager@townofbelgrade.com. All questions 
by prospective proposers pertaining to this RFP must be received, in writing, by the Town 
Manager at least five (5) days before the date set for the opening of the proposals. Any questions 
which, in the opinion of the Town Manager, request interpretation, will be addressed by a written 
interpretation in the form of a numbered addendum, sent by registered mail to each person or 
firm who has taken out an RFP not later than three (3) days prior to the scheduled opening of the 
proposals. Addenda issued later than three (3) days prior to the scheduled opening of the 
proposals may be by telephone. Proposers shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda in the space 
provided therefor in the proposal form, whether the addenda are in response to questions or 
otherwise issued by the Town and whether the addenda are received by mail or telephone. 

Each proposer is required to state in its proposal: (1) the proposer’s name and place of business, 
and the names of persons or parties interested as principals with it; (2) that the proposal is made 
without any connection with any other proposer making any proposal for the same piece of 
equipment; and (3) that no person acting for or employed by the Town is directly or indirectly 
interested in the proposal or any agreement which may be entered into to which the proposal 
relates or in any portion of the profits herefrom. 

The successful proposer shall be required to sign an agreement substantially similar to the 
standard Town services agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 
 
Before commencing work under the services agreement, the successful proposer shall produce 
evidence satisfactory to the Town that it and its subcontractors, if any, have secured public 
liability, automobile and workers' compensation insurance coverages as set forth in Exhibit 1.  



 

Proposers are responsible for all their costs in preparing and submitting proposals hereunder. 
 
No Proposals may be withdrawn within a period of thirty (30) days after the opening of bids. 
 
II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services hereunder is described in the specifications attached hereto (hereinafter, 
the “Services.”) 

III. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

The proposal must include all materials, equipment and labor necessary to perform the Services 
and must state the name of the person(s) or entity(entities) owning the materials and equipment 
and/or providing the personnel that forms the basis for its proposal. 

All Services to be furnished to the Town shall be performed with equipment, methods and use of 
personnel in accordance with the pertinent Occupational and Safety and Health Act (OSHA) 
requirements of the State of Maine and the United States. 

IV. SELECTION CRITERIA 

Proposals will be evaluated based on the following criteria: 

Cost (85%) 

Timeline of completing the project (10%) 

References (5%) 

V. ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION 
The Town reserves the right to waive any informalities in proposals, to accept any proposal and 
to reject any or all proposals, should it be deemed in the best interest of the Town to do so. 

Proposals may be held by the Town for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days from the date of 
the opening of proposals for the purpose of reviewing proposals and investigating the 
qualifications of the Proposers prior to the award of a contract. 

Date: ________________, ___________ 
 
By: _____________________________ 
      Town Manager 

 

 



 

APPENDIX A 
SPECIFICATIONS 

 
The skid steer must meet the following specifications. Vendors are welcome to submit multiple 
proposals.  
 

• Engine: emissions certification tier 4 diesel, minimum gross 74hp, net 68hp. 
• Two-speed.  
• Minimum 2,500-pound operating load, self-leveling.  
• Minimum 78-inch bucket with bolt on cutting edge. 
• Enclosed cab with HVAC, ROPS/FOPS level 1, suspension seat with seatbelt. 
• Alarm package – back-up and horn, beacon light, back-up camera. 
• Bids should include a high-flow option.  

Proposals should include manuals, delivery, warranties, on-site training on the use of the skid 
steer, and all associated costs.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this XX day of MONTH, 2022, by and between the 
Town of Belgrade, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of 
Maine and located in the County of Kennebec, State of Maine (hereinafter "TOWN") 
and VENDOR’S NAME (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"), 

WITNESSETH: 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, the TOWN 
and the CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall furnish and deliver the equipment as described in the 
Request for Proposals and Specifications titled: Town of Belgrade Skid Steer issued 
under date of March 21, 2022, by Anthony Wilson, Town Manager and shall do so in 
accordance with the Contractor's Proposal dated DATE, which Request for Proposals, 
Specifications and Proposals are attached hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter, 
collectively referred to as the "Services"), and the CONTRACTOR covenants that it 
shall do everything required by this Agreement, the conditions of the Agreement 
(together with the General, Supplementary and other Conditions, if any), the Request 
for Proposals, the Specifications, the Drawings and the Proposal in return for payment 
as provided herein. 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical 
accuracy, timely completion, and other Services furnished by the CONTRACTOR 
under this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR shall, without additional compensation, 
correct or revise any errors or deficiencies in his Services. Deficiencies are defined as 
willful or negligent acts that distort or falsify the state of the art of the products and 
Services developed and provided hereunder, or willful or negligent non-assignment of 
personnel or assignment of unqualified personnel to perform the duties hereunder. 
 
B. Approval by TOWN of services furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve 
the CONTRACTOR of responsibility for the technical adequacy of the work. Neither 
TOWN’s review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the Services 
shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or any 
cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement, and the 
CONTRACTOR shall remain liable in accordance with applicable law for all 
damages to TOWN caused by the CONTRACTOR's willfully negligent performance 
of any of the Services furnished under this Agreement. 



 

II. CONTRACTOR OBLIGATIONS 
 
The CONTRACTOR warrants: 

A. That it will furnish all vehicles, materials, personnel, tools and equipment, except 
as otherwise specified herein, and do everything necessary and proper to satisfactorily 
perform the Services required by this Agreement. 
 
B. That it is financially solvent, is experienced in and competent to perform the 
Services and is able to furnish the vehicles, materials, personnel, tools and equipment 
to be furnished by it. 
 
C. That it is familiar with all federal, State and local statutes, laws, rules, regulations, 
ordinances and orders which may in any way affect the Services. 
 
D. That it has carefully examined the Request for Bid Proposals, the Specifications 
and this Agreement, and has conducted its own investigation of the nature and 
location of the Services, the character of equipment and personnel needed to perform 
the Services, and all conditions which may in any way affect the performance of the 
Services. 
 
E. That any increase in CONTRACTOR’S costs during the term of this Agreement 
shall be the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 

III. COMPLETION OF SERVICES/COMPLETION DATE 

The Services to be performed under this Agreement shall be completed on or before 
DATE.  

IV. CONTRACT PRICE 
 
The TOWN shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the performance of Services under this 
Agreement the sum of AMOUNT (the "Contract Price"). 
 
V. PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
 
CONTRACTOR shall submit for TOWN’S approval an invoice for the Services 
performed hereunder in the previous month. The TOWN shall pay CONTRACTOR 
such approved amounts within thirty (30) days from TOWN’S receipt of said invoice. 
 
VI. GUARANTEE 



 

A. To the extent construction or materials are provided in the provision of Services 
hereunder, the CONTRACTOR and the subcontractors, if any, shall guarantee their 
work against any defects in workmanship and materials for a period of one year from 
the date of the TOWN’S written acceptance of this project, and agree to repair or 
replace at no cost or expense to the TOWN all work, materials and fixtures at any 
time during said one-year period. 
 
B. The CONTRACTOR represents that in the performance of its obligations 
hereunder, it will perform in accordance with applicable standards of conduct for 
professionals in the field. Where an engineer's stamp or seal is required in the conduct 
of such Services, the documents shall be stamped by a professional engineer 
registered in the State of Maine. 

VII. PERMITS AND LICENSES 
 
Permits and licenses necessary for the prosecution of the Services shall be secured and 
paid by the CONTRACTOR. 
 
VIII. TOWN'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT 
 
Without prejudice to any other right or remedy, the TOWN may terminate this 
Agreement for cause by providing the CONTRACTOR and its surety with seven (7) 
days' written notice of termination. For purposes of this Agreement, cause includes, 
but is not limited to: the adjudication of the CONTRACTOR as a bankrupt; the 
making of a general assignment by the CONTRACTOR for the benefit of its 
creditors; the appointment of a receiver because of the CONTRACTOR's insolvency; 
the CONTRACTOR's persistent or repeated refusal or failure, except for cases in 
which extension of time is provided, to supply enough properly skilled workers or 
proper materials to perform the Services; the CONTRACTOR's persistent disregard of 
federal, state or local statutes, laws, codes, rules, regulations, orders or ordinances; 
and the CONTRACTOR’s substantial violation of any provisions of this Agreement. 
In the event of a termination for cause, the TOWN may take possession of the 
premises and of all materials, tools and appliances thereon and finish the Services by 
whatever method it may deem expedient. In such case, the CONTRACTOR shall not 
be entitled to receive any further payment until the Services are finished. If the unpaid 
balance of the Agreement price shall exceed the expense of finishing the Services, 
including compensation for additional managerial and administrative services, such 
excess shall be paid to the CONTRACTOR. If such expense shall exceed such unpaid 
balance, the CONTRACTOR shall pay the difference to the TOWN. 
 
Further, the TOWN may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon thirty (30) 



 

days' written notice to the CONTRACTOR, in which case, the TOWN shall pay the 
CONTRACTOR for all Services satisfactorily performed and materials purchased up 
to the date of receipt of such notice by the CONTRACTOR. In the event the TOWN 
terminates this Agreement for cause and it subsequently is determined that cause did 
not exist, such termination shall be deemed to be for convenience. 
 
IX. INSURANCE 
 
Except as otherwise provided by this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR and its 
subcontractors and consultants shall obtain and maintain, throughout the term of this 
Agreement and for a period of at least two years following the completion of Services 
under this Agreement, at no expense to the TOWN, the following insurance 
coverages: 

a. Public Liability Insurance in the amount of not less than Four Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($400,000) or such other amount as is established by the Maine Tort Claims 
Act (14 M.R.S.A. §8101 et seq.) as amended from time to time, combined single 
limit, to protect the CONTRACTOR, any subcontractor performing Services under 
this Agreement, and the TOWN from claims and damages that may arise from 
operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by CONTRACTOR or 
by a subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by them. 
 
b. Workers' Compensation Insurance in amounts required by Maine law 
and Employer's Liability Insurance, as necessary, as required by Maine law. In case 
any class of employees engaged in hazardous work under this Agreement is not 
protected under the Workers' Compensation Act, the CONTRACTOR shall, at its own 
expense, provide for the protection of its employees not otherwise protected. 
 
c. All such insurance policies shall name the TOWN and its officers, agents and 
employees as additional insureds, except that for purposes of workers' compensation 
insurance, the CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors instead may provide a written 
waiver of subrogation rights against the TOWN. The CONTRACTOR, prior to 
commencement of Services under this Agreement, and any of its subcontractors, prior 
to commencement of Services under any subcontract, shall deliver to the TOWN 
certificates satisfactory to the TOWN evidencing such insurance coverages, which 
certificates shall state that the CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors must provide 
written notice to the TOWN at least thirty (30) days prior to cancellation, non-
renewal, material modification or expiration of any policies, evidenced by return 
receipt of United States Certified Mail. Replacement certificates shall be delivered to 
the TOWN prior to the effective date of cancellation, termination, material 
modification or expiration of any such insurance policy. The CONTRACTOR shall 



 

not commence Services under this Agreement until it has obtained all insurance 
coverages required under this subparagraph and such insurance policies have been 
approved by the TOWN, nor shall the CONTRACTOR allow any of its 
subcontractors to commence Services on any subcontract until all such insurance 
policies have been obtained by the subcontractor and approved by the TOWN. All 
such insurance policies shall have a retroactive date which is the earlier of the date of 
this Agreement between the parties or the CONTRACTOR’s Commencement of 
Services hereunder. 

X. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
The CONTRACTOR agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the TOWN, its 
officers, agents, and employees against any and all liabilities, causes of action, 
judgments, claims or demands, including attorney's fees and costs, for personal injury 
(including death) or property damage arising out of or caused by the performance of 
Services under this Agreement by CONTRACTOR, its subcontractors, agents or 
employees. 
 
XI. LIENS 
 
Neither the final payment nor any part of the retained percentage shall become due 
until the CONTRACTOR delivers to the TOWN a complete release of all liens arising 
out of the Agreement, or receipts in full in lieu thereof and, in either case, an affidavit 
that so far as it has knowledge or information the releases and receipts include all the 
labor and material for which a lien could be filed, but the CONTRACTOR may, if any 
subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or receipt in full, furnish a bond satisfactory 
to the TOWN to indemnify it against any lien. If any lien remains unsatisfied after all 
payments are made, the CONTRACTOR shall refund to the TOWN all moneys that 
the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such a lien, including all costs and a 
reasonable attorney's fee. 
 
XII. ASSIGNMENT 
 
Neither party to the Agreement shall assign this Agreement or sublet it as a whole 
without the written consent of the other, nor shall the CONTRACTOR assign any 
prior moneys due or to become due to it hereunder, without the previous written 
consent of the TOWN. 
 
XIII. SUBCONTRACTS 



 

 
The CONTRACTOR shall not sublet any part of this Agreement without the prior 
written permission of the TOWN. The CONTRACTOR agrees that it is fully 
responsible to the TOWN for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors and of 
persons either directly or indirectly employed by them, as it is for the acts and 
omissions of persons directly employed by it. 
 
XIV. USE OF PREMISES 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall confine its apparatus, the storage of materials and the 
operations of its workers to limits indicated by law, ordinances and permits and shall 
not otherwise unreasonably encumber the premises with its materials. If any part of 
the project is completed and ready for use, the TOWN may, by written and mutual 
consent, without prejudice to any of its rights or the rights of the CONTRACTOR, 
enter in and make use of such completed parts of the project. Such use or occupancy 
shall in no case be construed as an acceptance of any work, materials or Services. 
 
XV. CLEANING UP 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall at all times keep the premises free from accumulation of 
waste materials or rubbish caused by its employees or Services, and at the completion 
of the Services it shall remove all its rubbish from and about the project, and all its 
tools, scaffolding and surplus materials and shall leave the premises "broom-clean" or 
its equivalent, unless more exactly specified. In case of dispute, the TOWN may 
remove the rubbish and charge the cost to the CONTRACTOR. 

XVI. FINAL PAYMENT 
 
Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance for the Contract Sum, shall be 
paid by the TOWN to the CONTRACTOR when the Services have been completed 
and the Contract fully performed. 

XVII. TOWNSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 
All drawings, notes, documents, plans, and specifications or other material to be 
developed under this Agreement shall become the property of the TOWN and be 
promptly delivered to the TOWN upon the completion of Services under this 
Agreement or sooner upon TOWN’s request or the termination of this Agreement. 
The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the protection and/or replacement of any 



 

work or materials in its possession, including work or materials provided to the 
CONTRACTOR by the TOWN. The TOWN agrees that it will not use the 
construction plans and specifications developed under this Agreement for any project 
other than the project specified herein without the written consent of the 
CONTRACTOR, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
XVIII. DISCLAIMER 
 
CONTRACTOR has inspected the conditions of the premises and with full knowledge 
thereof agrees to take them as is, with no warranties express or implied excepting 
those express statements in this Agreement. 
 
XIX. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Provided such party gives written notice to the other of such event, a party shall not be 
liable for its failure to perform its respective obligations under this Agreement, if 
prevented from so doing by any cause beyond the reasonable control of such party 
such as, but not limited to, strikes, lockouts, or failure of supply or inability by the 
exercise of reasonable diligence, to obtain supplies, parts, or employees necessary to 
perform such obligations, or because of war or other emergency. The time within 
which such obligations shall be performed shall be extended for a period of time 
equivalent to the delay from such cause. 
 
XX. NON-WAIVER  
 
Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, the failure or waiver, or successive 
failures or waivers on the part of either party hereto, in the enforcement of any 
paragraph or provision of this Agreement shall not render the same invalid nor impair 
the right of either party hereto, its successors or permitted assigns, to enforce the same 
in the event of any subsequent breach thereof. 
 
XI. NOTICES 
 
Notices hereunder shall be deemed sufficient if sent by U.S. Certified mail as follows: 

 
TO TOWN: 

Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 
 

Town of Belgrade 
990 Augusta Road 
Belgrade, ME 04917     



 

TO CONTRACTOR: NAME 
STREET ADDRESS 
TOWN, STATE ZIP    
_________________________________   

XXII. REMEDIES 
 
Except as otherwise agreed by the parties in writing, all disputes, claims, 
counterclaims and other matters in question between the TOWN and the 
CONTRACTOR arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be decided by a 
Maine court of competent jurisdiction. This Agreement is made and shall be construed 
under the laws of the State of Maine. Except as otherwise expressly agreed by the 
parties in writing, exclusive venue for any such civil action shall be in Maine. 

XXIII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
The CONTRACTOR agrees that it and its subcontractors, if any, shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local statutes, laws, rules, regulations, codes, ordinances, 
orders and resolutions in the performance of Services under this agreement. 

XIV. RELEASE OF INFORMATION 
 
During the performance of the Services, any material, prepared or assembled by the 
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement shall not be made available to any individual 
or organization by the CONTRACTOR other than as called for herein without prior 
written authorization from the TOWN. 

XV. EXTENT OF AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement (and the Request for Proposal attached hereto and hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement) represent(s) the entire and integrated Agreement 
between TOWN and the CONTRACTOR and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both TOWN and the CONTRACTOR. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
day and year first above written. 

 
 

 

TOWN 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Witness By: ___________________________________ 
Town Manager 

________________    
 
    
CONTRACTOR   

Witness By: ___________________________________ 
________________ Its ____________________________________ 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 15, 2022 

Re: Boards and committees attendance policy 

 

Per the Selectboard’s wishes, attached is a draft policy regarding meeting 
attendance of the members of the Town’s boards and committees. It is based on 
the portions of the voter-approved Library Ordinance that govern attendance of 
the members of the Library Board of Trustees.   



 

Town of Belgrade 
Board and Committee Attendance Policy 

The Town of Belgrade appreciates and values its volunteers’ willingness to contribute to 
their municipal government through service on a Town board or committee. That 
volunteerism comes a level of responsibility – chiefly that members faithfully attend the 
meetings of the bodies on which they serve. Most Town boards and committees meet 
once per month, generally for about an hour (the exceptions being the Planning Board 
and the Board of Selectpersons, which meet twice monthly and typically for more than 
an hour).  

If board or committee members are unable to attend because of an underlying health 
condition or some unforeseen circumstance, they can still participate in meetings 
remotely under the Town’s Remote Participation Policy, which mirrors state law on 
remote meetings, was adopted by the Selectboard and took effect Aug. 1, 2021. 
Otherwise, board and committee members are expected to attend meetings in person to 
participate in the body’s discussions, deliberations and decisions. Failure to do so can 
result in a member’s removal from the board or committee. If a member is absent for 
more than three (3) consecutive meetings without suitable reason satisfactory to the 
board/committee, the board/committee shall notify the absent member and the town 
manager of the member’s absences. The town manager shall inform the Selectboard, 
which may then remove the absent member and fill the vacancy in the manner provided 
in the Committee Application Policy, adopted by the Selectboard on Nov. 16, 2021.  

 

Approved by the Board of Selectpersons on DATE.  

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Melanie Jewell, Chair    Rick Damren, Vice Chair 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Dan Newman     Barbara Allen 

 

 

______________________________ 
Carol Johnson  

 



 

Town of Belgrade 
Board and Committee Attendance Policy 

I, ______________________________, have read the Town of Belgrade’s Board and 
Committee Attendance Policy. I understand the expectation that I faithfully attend the 
meetings of the ______________________________ and the possibility I will be 
removed from the board/committee should I fail to do so.  

 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Signature      Date 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 15, 2022 

Re: Lakes Committee bylaws 

 

In keeping with its charter, the Lakes Committee has drafted and recommends 
approval of the attached bylaws that will govern its work. It is based to some 
degree on the portions of the voter-approved Library Ordinance that govern the 
work of the Library Board of Trustees.   



Town of Belgrade 
Lakes Committee bylaws 

I. Authorities and duties 

 The Lakes Committee considers, researches and discusses issues, concerns 
and other matters that impact the community’s greatest natural resource – its lakes. 
The Lakes Committee will work in partnership with other groups, organizations and 
individuals who share a commitment to the lakes’ preservation. Those stakeholders 
include the 7 Lakes Alliance, local lakes association, other towns that share 
Belgrade’s lakes, and property owners. The committee serves as an advisory body 
to the Board of Selectpersons, forwarding lake-related recommendations for the 
Selectboard to discuss and consider.  

II. Committee Membership 

 The Lakes Committee will consist of seven members, who shall be appointed by 
the Board of Selectpersons in keeping with the Selectboard’s appointment policy. 
Membership shall include:  

1. One member from the Belgrade Lakes Association. 
2. One member from the McGrath Pond-Salmon Lake Association. 
3. One member from the Friends of Messalonskee. 
4. One member who is a seasonal resident. 
5. Three at-large members. 

 Appointees shall be sworn to the faithful discharge of their duties by the Town 
Clerk. 

III. Terms  

Committee members will be appointed for staggered terms of three (3) years. 
Committee members shall be eligible to serve no more than four (4) three-year 
terms in succession. Terms shall coincide with the first Selectboard meeting after the 
annual town meeting. The Town Clerk shall maintain an up-to-date list of trustees 
and their terms.  

Except for the seasonal representative, committee members shall be qualified 
electors and residents of the Town. They shall comply with the provisions of 30-A 
MRSA 2605 pertaining to conflicts of interest. If any committee member no longer 
meets the above qualifications or is convicted of a crime punishable by incarceration 
for six (6) months or more, his/her position will be immediately vacant.  

IV. Meetings, officers and attendance 

 As with all Town boards and committees, the meetings of the Lake Committee 
must be posted in advance and open to the public. Meetings shall be scheduled at 3 



p.m. on the first Wednesday of the month, unless that date falls on a holiday, in the 
Town Office on an as-needed basis. If a change in meeting time and/or date is 
needed, notification should be communicated to the committee chair. The chair will 
call the other members to determine if a quorum can be achieved. If so, at least four 
committee members must agree to a change in the scheduled time and/or date. 

Specially called meetings may be conducted at other times, dates and places. The 
committee shall meet at least once annually. At its first meeting after each annual 
town meeting, the committee shall elect by a majority vote of the committee:  

1. A chair, who will preside over the meetings and will report to the Selectboard, as 
necessary. The chair shall not serve more than two (2) full terms in succession.  

2. A vice-chair, who will president over meetings in the absence of the chair. 
3. A secretary to take written minutes of meetings to be shared with the Town Clerk 

upon their approval.  

If a committee member misses more than three (3) regular meetings from April through 
the following March without suitable reason satisfactory to the committee chair, the 
committee shall notify the absent member and the town manager of the absences. The 
Town Manager shall inform the Selectboard, which may then remove the absent 
member. The vacancy will be filled in accordance with the Town’s appointment policy.  

V. Quorum 

A majority of the committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. 
If a quorum is not present and the meeting is rescheduled before the next regularly 
scheduled meeting, it shall be done so in the manner required for all Town board 
and committee meetings.  

VI. Compensation of members 

Members of the Lakes Committee shall serve without compensation.  

  



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 15, 2022 

Re: Spirit of America nominees 

 

Attached are the four nominations received for this year’s Spirit of America 
Award, which honors community volunteerism. The nominees are:  

• Marylou and Alan Butterfield for their leadership of and work for the 
Belgrade/Rome Special Needs Food Pantry.  

• Judy Hallowell for various community contributions, including the 
donation of her business’ work at Pine Grove Cemetery.  

• Becky Seel for her involvement with Neighbors Driving Neighbors and 
past School Board service. 

• Mary Vogel for her service to the Town’s government and to the Girl 
Scouts.  











Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 15, 2022 

Re: Town Manager’s report 

 

I was elected last week to represent District 3 as an appointed municipal official 
on the Kennebec County Budget Committee. County Administrator Scott 
Ferguson, a Belgrade resident who serves on our Budget Committee, asked me 
to serve, and I was happy to do so for three reasons. One, having insight into the 
county’s budget process may help us in our own budgeting. Two, as you know, 
Scott has a great deal of financial acumen, so I’m hoping to also learn from how 
he approaches the process as an administrator. And three, of course, maybe I 
can have some influence on the budget and how it impacts our taxpayers.  

Election Day is Saturday, March 19. Polls will be open from 8 a.m.-8 p.m. at the 
Center for All Seasons, 1 Center Drive along Route 27 in the village. Absentee 
ballots must be returned by 8 p.m. Saturday, either at the Town Office dropbox or 
at the Center for All Seasons. I will text you results as soon as they are available.  

Our contractor called last week to ask if we could make adjustments to the plow 
contract because of rising fuel prices. I asked for a written proposal for your 
consideration at your next meeting. 

As a reminder, I will be in Texas the first week of April as my daughter is 
starring in a Sondheim production at her university. Your options for your first 
meeting in April are to: 1) Carry on without me. 2) Postpone the meeting until 
April 12 (and then we could meet either April 19 or April 26). 3) Have a meeting 
on March 29 and then again on April 19.  

  














	March 15, 2022, agenda
	March 1, 2022, minutes
	appointments
	skid steer
	skid steer memo
	skid steer rfp

	attendance
	attendance memo
	attendance policy

	bylaws
	bylaws memo
	Lakes Committee bylaws

	spirit
	spirit memo
	butterfield spirit
	hallowell spirit
	seel spirit
	vogel spirit

	town manager report
	warrant 30



